Public Document Pack

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information
only

Committee

- GOVERNANCE & AUDIT
COMMITTEE

Date & Time

- Friday, 14th December, 2018 at 10.00 am

Venue

- Norfolk Room, Conference Suite,
Elizabeth House, Dereham

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least
two working days before the meeting. If the information requested is
available, this will be provided, and reported to Committee.
Members
Mr W.P. Borrett (Chairman)
Mr P. S. Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman)
Mr P.J. Hewett

Mrs L.H. Monument
Mr M. J. Nairn
Mr J. Newton

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE
REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE
TELEPHONES

Democratic Services
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Thursday 6 December 2018

Please ask for Julie Britton DDI (01362) 656343
e-mail: julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk

Governance & Audit Committee
14 December 2018

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Page(s)
herewith
1.

MINUTES

5 - 10

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2018.
2.

ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES (IF ANY) (STANDING ITEM)

3.

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

4.

URGENT BUSINESS
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act
1972.

5.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate for the entire
consideration of the matter, in respect of any matter in which a Member has a
disclosable pecuniary interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act
2011. Members are also required to withdraw from the meeting room as
stated in the Standing Orders of this Council.

6.

NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.

7.

TRAINING (STANDING ITEM)
To note if there are any training issues/ requests.

8.

QUARTER 2 2018-19 RISK REPORT

11 - 24

Report of Executive Director for Strategy & Governance.
9.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REPORT 2018-19

25 - 33

Report of Councillor Phillip Cowen, Executive Member Finance.
10.

FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

34 - 43

Report of the Head of Internal Audit - presented by Faye Haywood, Internal
Audit Manager for Breckland DC.
11.

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY

44 - 65

Report of the Head of Internal Audit - presented by Faye Haywood, Internal
Audit Manager for Breckland DC.
12.

WORK PROGRAMME
A copy of the Committee’s work programme is attached. The Committee is

66

Governance & Audit Committee
14 December 2018
Page(s)
herewith

asked to consider whether any additions, deletions or amendments to the
programme are required.
13.

NEXT MEETING
To note the arrangements for the next meeting on Friday, 15 February 2019
at 10.00am in the Norfolk Room.
As previously requested by the Committee, a Norfolk Pension Fund
Representative will be in attendance after the meeting. Members are asked
to send any questions they may have to Alison Chubbock who will then pass
them onto the representative.

14.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
To consider passing the following resolution:
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 3 and 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act”.
PART B – ITEM FROM WHICH THE PRESS AND THE PUBLIC ARE
EXCLUDED

15.

QUARTER 2 2018-19 RISK REPORT - APPENDIX

67

Agenda Item 1
BRECKLAND COUNCIL
At a Meeting of the
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
Held on Friday, 28 September 2018 at 10.00 am in
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham
PRESENT
Mr W.P. Borrett (Chairman)
Mr P. S. Wilkinson (ViceChairman)

Mrs L.H. Monument
Mr M. J. Nairn

In Attendance

Ross Bangs

-

Alison Chubbock

-

Emma Hodds

-

Kevin Suter
Leanne Neave

-

Corporate Improvement & Performance
Manager (shared)
Chief Accountant (Deputy Section 151
Officer) (BDC)
Head of Internal Audit for Breckland
Council
Executive Director, Ernst & Young
Democratic Services Officer
Action By

49/18 MINUTES

The Minutes of the Governance & Audit Committee meeting held
on 13 July 2018 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by
the Chairman; subject to the following amendment, Mr John
Plaskett to be listed as present at the meeting.
50/18 ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES (IF ANY) (STANDING

ITEM)
None.
51/18 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor John Newton
and Paul Hewett.
52/18 URGENT BUSINESS

None.
53/18 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

None.
54/18 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING

None.

1

5

Governance & Audit Committee
28 September 2018
Action By

55/18 TRAINING (STANDING ITEM)

None.
56/18 QUARTER 1 2018-19 RISK REPORT

Ross Bangs, Corporate Improvement Performance Manager,
presented the report.
Members attention was drawn to a number of changes, three risks
were currently in the high category.
Mr Plaskett commented that the failure to maximise income from
investments was a concern, he suggested a more detailed review
be presented at the next meeting so the Committee had a clear
understanding of the risk.
The Chairman asked the reason for the deterioration.
The Corporate Improvement Performance Manager advised the
Council had a number of units subject to asset appraisal with a
view to dispose or re-invest. He confirmed that the appraisal of the
units would inform a strategic decision as to disposal or re-let.
The Chairman believed that with an increased vacancy level in the
Portfolio it was not appropriate to measure it as part of the risk.
The action taken by the team was with the strategic aim of
maximising potential from the Portfolio. He requested that a full
report be presented from the team at the next meeting.
Councillor Nairn queried the critical breach of security that showed
as static, he was of the opinion that it would be far more volatile
than ever before.
The Corporate Improvement Performance Manager advised there
was a corporate firewall provided which gave further protection. It
scanned files on a daily basis as and when they were received.
Additional actions were planned up to the target date of 31st
December and he reported that the team were confident the target
risk impact would be achieved
Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit advised that whilst it may be
more volatile the team had addressed risks to the Council. The
impact could not reduce dramatically but the likelihood of it
happening could be reduced.
Members queried the staff recruit and retention. It was asked what
key recruitment was outstanding and had potential staff retirements
been mapped out as there had been no significant changes in 12
months. They were advised that a piece of work was ongoing, staff
turnover in quarter one was 14%, the Human Resources team
were looking to benchmark this against other Local Authorities.
Significant work was also being done on staff retention.
The Chairman requested the Corporate Improvement Performance
2

6

Governance & Audit Committee
28 September 2018
Action By

Manager present an update on the points raised at the next
meeting.
Members agreed that due to Riverside only having one vacant unit
remaining the risk no longer needed reporting as an individual risk
and moving forward it would be covered in the commercial property
risk.
It was noted that Data Protection had levelled out. GDPR had been
an unknown but a dedicated Officer was now in place and there
would be an internal audit review.
57/18 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH

2018
Kevin Suter, Executive Director, Ernst & Young began by saying
this would be his last meeting as he would be handing over to Mark
Hodgson for 2018-2019 Audit. He thanked Officers and Members
for their support during his time.
He advised the purpose of the document presented to Members
was to convey the results of the audit in a less formal form. It was
aimed at the wider stakeholder audience and the public if they
wished to engage. He advised there was no new information in the
document.
Members attention was drawn to Section 6 which had been added
as an illustration as to how audit was changing. Instead of random
sampling of transactions it was more risk focussed. There was the
ability to gather information in more detail, system journals could
go out on a weekend but manual journals should not be done at
weekends as they were done by Officers who work 9-5 weekdays.
This was only made possible due to the progression in technology
It was highlighted to Members that Section 7 gave details of the
new accounting standards being introduced this year. There were
three new accounting standards which could delay the
achievement of the deadline of July. Whilst the new revenue
recognition scheme might not have a material effect on Local
Authorities there would be a need to demonstrate why it does not
apply. On page 45 the new leasing standard was explained. This
is applicable in 2019-2020 but in this year’s account there was a
requirement to make a disclosure about anticipated impacts so
there was a need for the process to be done sooner.
Alison Chubbock, Chief Accountant and Deputy Section 151
Officer advised that work was in progress to review these new
standards and she had no major concerns. IFRS 9 would not have
great deal of impact as the Council invested in simple cash
deposits with banks and building societies but a piece of work to
show this would be done.
3

7

Governance & Audit Committee
28 September 2018
Action By

IRFS 15 again there were no issues with the Council’s own
accounts but there was a potential adjustment to be done with the
group accounts with Breckland Bridge. She reported the
investigation had started and she was confident it would be
straightforward.
IRFS 16 leases, she advised this did not apply to leases out to
other people (so it didn’t apply to rental income from commercial
tenants) it was only relevant when the Council leased from other
companies, most of the Breckland leases were small value items
for example photocopiers which may not be impacted by the new
standard, but we are awaiting final CIPFA guidance.
Members were advised that the document would be published on
the website.
The Chairman confirmed the Panel had considered the document
and its contents and were happy for it to be published.
The Chairman thanked Kevin on behalf of the Committee for his
unfailing good humour and support to the Committee and for
producing the audit over three years. He wished him well for the
future.
58/18 AUDIT COMMITTEE SELF-ASSESSMENT EXERCISE

Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit reminded Members that this
assessment was looked at six months ago, comments had been fed
into it and Mr Plaskett had provided scores he was happy with.
There were a few areas that had scored three and rather than take
immediate action it had been the wish of the committee to revisit
them after six months.
Mr Plaskett advised he felt he had been a little harsh in his initial
scoring. Having had six months on the Committee he was able to
see areas that he would now score higher than he did initially.
It was agreed to go through the scores.





Promoting the principles of good governance and their
application to decision making – Members agreed to leave
this at 4 and revisit next time.
Contributing to the development of an effective control
environment – Mr Plaskett thought the 3 was too low and
rescored as 4.
Supporting the establishment of arrangements for the
governance of risk and for effective arrangements to manage
risks – Members were happy to leave this as a 4
Advising on the adequacy of the assurance framework and
considering whether assurance is deployed efficiently and
effectively – after re-reading Mr Plaskett believed this should
4

8

Governance & Audit Committee
28 September 2018
Action By








be 4
Supporting the quality of the internal audit activity,
particularly by underpinning its organisational independence
– Members were happy to leave as 4
Aiding the achievement of the authority’s goals and
objectives through helping to ensure appropriate
governance, risk, control and assurance arrangements – Mr
Plaskett would like this amended to 4
Supporting the development of robust arrangements for
ensuring value for money – Mr Plaskett wished for the
committee to discuss. Councillor Wilkinson felt this could be
4 as it was well led by Alison Chubbock and information was
always clear. Emma Hodds reminded the committee that
they receive a value for money conclusion annually from the
annual external auditor comments. Members agreed to
amend this to 4.
Helping the authority to implement the values of good
governance, including effective arrangements for countering
fraud and corruption risks. Mr Plaskett was happy to mark as
4.

Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit asked if there were any
training needs or requests from this assessment for the work
programme and for confirmation of a review date.
The Committee agreed there were no training needs or requests for
the work programme and they wished to review in six months time.
At this review a decision would be made as to whether this
remained a six monthly assessment or became annual.
59/18 WORK PROGRAMME

The Chairman wished to confirm there would be training at the next
Governance & Audit Committee meeting.
Alison Chubbock, Chief Accountant and Deputy Section 151 Officer
confirmed she had spoken to the Pensions fund and they were
happy to come at the end of the next meeting to answer questions
and give Members a presentation on the work they do.
Action: to adopt as part of the work programme a training
session to follow the next meeting.
The Chief Accountant reminded Members that Treasury
Management training was delivered annually and asked if the
committee wished for it to follow the February meeting.
Following a discussion Members agreed that as there had been no
changes to the committee membership, the previous session had
been very thorough and with the Election in May a decision should
5

9

Governance & Audit Committee
28 September 2018
Action By

be made at June’s meeting as to whether training was required.
60/18 NEXT MEETING

The next meeting would be held at 10am on 14 December 2018.
61/18 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

Not required as no Press or Public were present at the meeting.
62/18 APPENDIX 2 FOR QUARTER 1 2018-19 RISK REPORT

Discussed under agenda item 8.
The meeting closed at 10:40

CHAIRMAN

6

10

Agenda Item 8

BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Maxine O’Mahony - Executive Director of Strategy and Governance

To:

Audit Committee – 14th December 2018

Author:

Corey Gooch – Senior Business Intelligence Officer

Subject:

Risk Report – Quarter 2 2018-19

Purpose:

To inform the Committee on the current status of the Councils’ strategic
risks

Recommendation(s):
1)
1.0

That the contents of the report are noted.
BACKGROUND

1.1

This report has been compiled to include updates on strategic risks for quarter 2
of 2018-19.

1.2

Strategic risks are captured on the Corporate Dashboard which is available to the
Executive Management Team (EMT) and reviewed by EMT quarterly. In addition,
risks are reviewed monthly at the internal Performance, Risk & Audit Board chaired
by the Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.3

Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with responsible members of the
Executive Management Team. The strategic risk register includes 15 strategic
risks (see Appendix A). These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the
strategic direction of the council, rather than risks linked to business continuity or
those that affect discreet service areas. Overall the number of risks in the high
category remains the same, there is one less in the medium category this quarter
and one more in the low rated category, so overall risk scores have improved this
quarter.

1.4

Strategic risks typically affect the whole of the organisation and not just one or
more parts of it. Strategic risks can potentially involve very high stakes and often
affect the ability of the organisation to survive, e.g. impact on the ability of the
Council to achieve its corporate plan objectives and purpose. Strategic risks are
managed at senior level (EMT) within the Council.

1.5

The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix, and is comparable with
best practice in other similar organisations. The risk matrix provides a comprehensive
assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a
numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it
happening.

1.6

Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating
High
Medium

11

Low

1.7

Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks currently
reported at each score

1.8
1.9

There are three risks currently reported in the high category

1.10

The ICT risk regarding possible critical breach remains a high risk due to the impact a
breach would have on the council, Whilst the ICT service looks to continue to reduce the
likelihood reducing impact is more difficult, backups and system checkpoints are
implemented by the service so at this stage impact is being reduced in the best possible
way.

1.11

The impact of the homelessness reduction Act risk also remains at red status for this
quarter, the implementation of the Act continues put a strain on the resources for the
housing service as well as the housing register. However following a successful recruitment
process for a number of positions at the end of Q2. We would expect to see this risk move
to a more positive position over the next couple of Quarters, as the new staff are trained up
and able to take on more of the demand and pressure being put on the service.

1.12

The final risk that remains in the high category for this quarter is the risk around the failure
to maximise income from the investment asset portfolio. As it stands there are a number of
significant sized commercial assets that are being reviewed that have affected the scoring
of this risk due to one large void which contributes to reduced revenue income. Despite
appraising a number of options for re-investment this year to replace the income, these
have not been successful and new opportunities continue to be sought via a refreshed
Investment Strategy to invest in existing assets or create opportunities off-market. In
addition to the above, all current void units continue to be actively marketed and interest is
good and properties continue to churn in the portfolio.

1.13

There are eight risks which fall into the medium category, all of which were scored as medium in
the last quarter and therefore there are no changes to report Whilst risk scores have remained
the same there has been a lot of work done by the services, which we would hope to see the
results of over the next 2 quarters and see these risks meet their target scores. Work includes
HR focusing on social media to enhance our recruitment campaigns and this should look to

12

boost recruitment numbers, the services continues to look at ways to reshape our
recruitment process to ensure it is effective in attracting the talent we need, that being said
recruitment has been positive for this quarter and we look for this to continue. Analysis has
also been conducted by the CIP team which has shown positive trends among staff
turnover within Breckland. Work also continues within the Legal team around GDPR and
ensuring privacy notices/IARs are complete, a detailed project plan has been produced for
remaining work, and an Audit is scheduled for December. There has been positive work
done around our contracts monitoring risk as the contracts team continue to receive
strategic supplier updates from central government which detail any changes in business
strategy, financial stability or shareholder activity which could de-stabilise the companies.
The team also ensure that all strategic contracts procured undergo through supplier
appraisal before the award of contract, which can be refreshed on an annual basis where
necessary.
1.14

There are four risks which fall into the low category, the changes in this category relate to
the risk around the under occupancy of riverside which has improved and reduced from the
medium category in the previous quarter, this is due to only one single void unit remaining,
this was previously 4 units so is a positive movement, the unit will continue to be marketed
to try and secure a letting, improved trading conditions as a result of a programme of leisure
based community activities. Money has also been secured to fund a further programme in
2019.

1.15

The CIP Team will be commencing work in December to work with service risk owners to
adopt focused approaches to identifying and managing risks to ensure the strategic risk
register is dynamic and responsive to the wider organisation as well as reflective of other
areas such as the greater economic, environmental and strategic climate. This work will
also include monthly risk focused meetings with senior managers to identify new risks as
well as any sudden changes or issues to be aware of relating to current risks, the team will
also work with senior officers to ensure the councils risks link into wider policy changes and
other changes that will affect the council like Brexit. This positive and pro-active new way of
working will be reflected in the Strategic risk register moving forward.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

Note the contents of the report and the recommendation and do nothing

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Not applicable

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

That the Committee is made aware of the Council’s strategic risks and understands that
they are being managed and mitigated effectively.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

13

5.1.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no carbon footprint or environmental
implications.

5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct constitutional or legal implications.

5.3

Contracts

5.3.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct contract implications.

5.4

Corporate Priorities

5.4.1

The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the Council’s
corporate priorities.

5.5

Crime and Disorder

5.5.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct crime and disorder implications.

5.6

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct equality or human rights implications.

5.7

Financial

5.7.1

The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the Council’s budgets and
financial management.

5.8

Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no health or wellbeing implications.

5.9

Reputation

5.9.1

Risks which come to fruition have some reputational consequence. It is the purpose of the
risk management strategy to manage potential outcomes by means of control measures.

5.10

Risk Management

5.10.1 The report provides detail on the Council’s strategic risks.
5.11

Safeguarding

5.11.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct safeguarding implications as a result
of this report

5.12

Staffing

5.12.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the
Council’s corporate priorities.

14

5.13

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.13.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct implications arising from this
report.

5.14

Transformation Programme

5.14.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct implications arising from this
report.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

Not applicable.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

ICT - Information Communication Technology

7.2

EMT - Executive Management Team

Background papers: None
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Ross Bangs – Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager
01362 665268
ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Breckland District Council Strategic Risk Register Q2 2018-19
Appendix B
Breckland District Council Strategic Risk Register Q2 2018-19 (Below
the line - Exempt)

15

BDC Strategic Risk Report inc Targets

Description

Impact of
Homelessness
Reduction Act

The implementation of the
new act places additional
burdens on BDC which
may mean a reduced ability
within the service to adhere
to the act due to an
unpredictable increase of
persons approaching the
housing options service.
Capacity may be impacted
by increased volumes of
homeless applications,
increased time needed to
manage each case in order
to fulfil the requirements of
the new legislation and risk
that the expansion of the
duty could lead to a serious
shortfall in available
temporary housing options
to accommodate homeless
individuals and families

16

Title

Original
Score

12

Current Risk Score Impact

16

4

Likelihood

4

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)
Demand as a result of the
Homelessness reduction
act remains high however
the service recruited
additional staff towards the
end of Q2, the risk
remains unchanged as
there is a degree of
training and embedding
the new staff before we
can see a reduction in
pressure due to the work
load being shared out. The
service continues to
monitor the demand and
resources and would look
to see this risk reduce in
the next few months as
staff are embedded into
the team.

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

3

2

Target Date

31-Mar-2018

Title

Description

17

Failure to
maximise
income from
investment
asset portfolio

This risk covers the
councils failure to
maximise income from
the investment asset
portfolio (commercial
property)

Critical breach
of ICT security

Attacks are happening
with increasing
frequency at present.
Ransom and theft
specialists are targeting
banking details and
personal information, as

Original
Score

16

25

Current Risk Score Impact

16

15

4

5

Likelihood

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

Target Date

4

Risk score remains the
same due to one large
void property, the
potential disposal of
another large property
and the disposal of a
number of smaller
assets which would all
contribute to reduce
revenue income,
despite creating capital
receipts. Despite
appraising a number of
options for reinvestment this year to
replace the income,
these have not been
successful and new
opportunities continue
to be sought via a
refreshed Investment
Strategy to invest in
existing assets or
create opportunities offmarket. In addition to
the above, all current
void units continue to
be actively marketed
and interest is good
and properties continue
to churn in the portfolio.

3

2

01-Dec-2018

3

The position is the
same as the last time
this risk was assessed,
there has been a lot of
focus in this quarter
around GDPR
compliance as well as

4

2

31-Mar-2018

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk Score Impact

Likelihood

with all other
government systems
and private companies

18

Staff
recruitment and
retention at all
levels within
the
organisation

Staff recruitment and
retention issues could
undermine the
effectiveness of the
organisations though
loss of experience and
knowledge

With the implementation
of the General Data
General Data
Protection Regulation,
Protection
which replaces the Data
Regulation
Protection Action of
Implementation 1998, there is a risk that
the council will not
manage its data

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

Target Date

data retention as well
as ensuring the ICT
systems allow for
efficient and responsive
backups and
restoration of data.

15

16

12

12

3

4

4

This quarter the HR
service have focused on
social media to enhance
our recruitment campaigns
and this has boosted our
recruitment numbers, the
services continues to look
at ways to reshape our
recruitment process to
ensure it is effective in
attracting the talent we
need, that being said
recruitment has been
positive for this quarter.
Analysis has also been
conducted by the CIP
team which has shown
positive trends among
staff turnover within
Breckland and that
Breckland staff turnover is
well in line with the
national average for all
local authorities, meaning
we are at a point which
could be classed as a
"healthy" turnover rate.

2

2

31-Mar-2018

3

Whilst further progress
has been made, and
privacy notices/IARs
are complete with only
one or two exceptions,
it remains too early to
reduce the overall level
of risk. A detailed

2

2

31-Jan-2019

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk Score Impact

Likelihood

appropriately and in line
with the new
regulations.

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

Target Date

project plan has been
produced for remaining
work, and an Audit is
scheduled for
December. Some key
actions remain
outstanding - in
particular the
introduction of
contractual obligations
on a number of our
suppliers.

19
Contracts
Monitoring

This risk covers the
councils monitoring of
contracts with external
partners to ensure
arrangements are
financially secure and
performing

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)

16

9

3

3

Risk remains
unchanged as the
contracts team
continue to receive
strategic supplier
updates from central
government which
detail any changes in
business strategy,
financial stability or
shareholder activity
which could de-stabilise
the companies.
The team also ensure
that all strategic
contracts procured
undergo through
supplier appraisal
before the award of
contract, which can be
refreshed on an annual
basis where necessary.
The likelihood of this
happening on one of

2

3

31-Jan-2018

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk Score Impact

Likelihood

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

Target Date

our major strategic
contracts remains
unchanged given
recent financial issues
in the sector for
companies such as
Carillion and Capita.
The potential impact
also remains the same.
Failure to
maximise
trading
opportunities

Failure to maximise
trading opportunities
could result in lack of
commercial exploitation
of assets or income from
trading arms

20

Impact of County
Council Budget
Impact of
Reductions - this will
County Council potentially impact on our
Budget
ability to deliver
Reductions
Services. This will
potentially impact on
resident wellbeing.

Medium Term
Financial Plan
Not Delivered

The council's medium
term financial strategy
has identified a budget
gap, the transformation
programme will need to
make this level of saving
for the organisation over
that period to balance
the budget.

9

9

12

6

6

6

2

2

2

3

No change to risk score
for this quarter as
commercial
opportunities continue
to be put forward and
existing ones reviewed.

2

2

31-Dec-2018

3

The County Council
budget consultation will
be reviewed when it is
produced later this year
(likely quarter 3).

2

2

31-Dec-2018

3

The medium term financial
plan and balanced budget
is reliant on the delivery of
the moving forward
transformation
programme. The
programme has slipped for
some Year 3 projects
which will have an impact
on year 3 and 4 (18-19 &
19-20). The main area of
risk is the growth &
investment fund return as
opportunities for spend in
the area are proving

2

2

30-Sep-2018

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk Score Impact

Likelihood

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

Target Date

limited.
In order to mitigate this we
have included the phase 2
transformation projects in
the new year budget and
have re-profiled and flexed
the existing programme to
achieve the best outcome
and focus resources to the
most appropriate areas for
returns.

21

An economic investment
vision is being worked on
to look at the best use of
the growth and investment
reserve.
Reliance on RSG has
been removed from the
budget from 2018-19 and
our aim is to remove
reliance on New Homes
Bonus in the new budget this will provide funding to
carry out Member
preferred communities
related work and projects.
The new year budget is
almost completed and this
will provide full information
on the medium term
financial plan.

Failure to
deliver the
council's
Corporate
Priorities

Would lead to missed
targets and failure to
deliver objectives and
may result in the Council
suffering reputational
damage and a failure to
deliver priorities to

6

4

2

2

Risk remains
unchanged as the
Corporate improvement
and performance team
continue to monitor and
work with staff towards
achieving the corporate

2

2

30-Apr-2019

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk Score Impact

Likelihood

residents.

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

Target Date

priorities. The
performance risk and
audit board continues
to be held monthly to
address any areas of
poor performance
should they arise. It is
worth noting that this
risk will be re-assessed
when the new
corporate priorities are
established and agreed
in the new corporate
plan.

22
Failure to
deliver Local
Plan and its
Delivery Plan

Failure to deliver Local
Plan and its Delivery
Plan - reputational and
financial risk due to
possible Secretary of
State intervention. there
is also a new risk
emerging due to New
Homes Bonus.

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)

8

4

4

1

The Local Plan
continues to remain
under examination,
following the close of
the oral hearings in
September. The next
step in the process is to
undertake consultation
on the proposed Main
Modifications requested
by the Inspector. These
are due to be
considered by full
Council, and if agreed it
is expected that this
consultation will occur
during January and
February 2019. In light
of the current stage of
progress it remains
appropriate for the
impact and likelihood
scores to remain
unchanged for this

4

1

30-Apr-2019

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk Score Impact

Likelihood

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

Target Date

update.
Risk profile reviewed
and reduced to Impact
2, Likelihood 2.

23

The completed lettings
of Riverside is due to
contribute income to
Under
support a balanced
occupancy of
budget. Inability to
Riverside once
complete lettings will
complete
impact on the
contribution this will
make to the budget.

Business rate
retention
scheme

Business rate retention
policy changes leave the
council exposed to risks
on collection and
baseline income.

9

4

2

2

Units 1-3 let and only 1
single void unit
remaining. Continuing
to market last unit now
that units 1-3 are let.
Marketing strategy
reviewed and further
push to secure letting.

2

2

31-Dec-2018

2

2

31-Dec-2018

Improved trading
conditions as a result of
a programme of leisure
based community
activities. Secured
monies to fund a further
programme in 2019.

16

4

2

2

The timing of the
Business Rates
retention scheme has
been delayed to 2020
and will be a 75%
retention scheme,
providing more time for
MHCLG to devise a fit
for purpose scheme.
This timing also fits with
the implementation of
the fair funding review,
which will provide a
new 'needs' formula for
councils. The new 75%
retention scheme which
will incorporate other

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk Score Impact

Likelihood

Trend Latest Note
(last
qtr)

Target Target
Impact Likelihood

Target Date

grants (such as
Revenue Support Grant
- RSG) and further
consultations are
expected in the autumn
on this and the fair
funding review, when
more detail will start to
emerge allowing better
analysis of the impacts.

24

Failure to
effectively
implement
corporate
business
continuity plan

Failure to effectively
implement the corporate
business continuity plan,
thereby exposing the
authority to the risk of
service outage following
a major incident

4

3

3

1

The Emergency
planning officer in
conjunction with the EP
board is continuing to
support managers with
their refresh of their
business continuity
plans. A large number
are now complete and
the emergency
planning officer will
continue to work with
the services and
managers to ensure
these are effective in
real life scenarios.

3

1

31-Oct-2018

Agenda Item 9

BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Councillor Phillip Cowen, Executive Member Finance

To:

Governance and Audit Committee, 14th December 2018

Author:

Christine Marshall, Executive Director Commercialisation & S151

Purpose:

The report is a mid-year update on treasury activity

Recommendation:
1) That Governance and Audit Committee agree the mid-year report and information on
treasury activity
1.0

BACKGROUND
Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s borrowing,
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks”
The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the year
will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operations ensure this
cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering optimising
investment return.
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its
capital spending operations.
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on
Treasury Management has been adopted by this Council. The primary requirements of the
Code are as follows:
1. Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets out
the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities.
2. Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives.
3. Receipt by the full council (delegated to the Governance and Audit Committee for this
Council) of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement – including the Annual
Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy for the year ahead, a Mid
Year Review report (this report) and an Annual Report (stewardship report) covering
activities during the previous year.
4. Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring treasury
management policies and practices and for the execution and administration of treasury
management decisions.
5. Delegation by the Council of the role of the scrutiny of treasury management strategy
and policies to a specific named body. For this Council the delegated body is the
Governance and Audit Committee.

25

1.1

The new Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on
Treasury management and the Prudential Code are effective from 01/04/2018. They
include the revised Ministry for Communities, Housing and Local Government (MCHLG)
statutory guidance on Local Government Investments

1.2

The definition of an investment now covers all the financial assets of the organisation, as
well as other non-financial assets which the organisation holds primarily for financial
returns, such as investment property portfolios. This may include investments which are not
managed as part of normal treasury management or under treasury management
delegations. All investments require an appropriate investment management and risk
framework

1.3

The anticipated changes to both the Treasury Policy and Strategies and the Capital
Strategy was reported to Governance and Audit Committee on 16th February 2018. CIPFA
did not anticipate the changes being implemented in full until 19/20 and this report therefore
highlights the key changes that are proposed. The Capital strategy will be put forward for
approval as part of the budget setting report to Council in February and the proposed
amendments to the Treasury documentation will be put forward to Governance and Audit
Committee in February 2019.
This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on
Treasury Management, and covers the following:

Key changes to documentation proposed to comply with the new Code of Practice and
Prudential code;

An economic update for the first half of 2018/19;

A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy;

The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators);

A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2018/19;

A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2018/19;

A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2018/19

2.0

KEY CHANGES TO DOCUMENTATION
For 2019-20 the Treasury Management Policies and Prudential Indicators must be more
closely aligned to the Council’s Capital strategy. The Capital Strategy itself will be
amended to include a new section setting out the Council’s approach to non-financial
investments. Whilst yield is a determining factor, due consideration will be given to the
risks relating to the following and they will either be reported on Pentana or monitored as a
risk:
1. failure to create income/exposure to market changes
2. covenant strength/possibility of arrears
3. ongoing management/maintenance of the asset
4. lease arrangements
5. exposure in one sector
6. exposure to one/few tenants
7. exposure to one locality
The additional S151 responsibilities in respect of non-financial investments will also be
embedded into the appraisal and approval process for capital and the performance
management and reporting process.

26

In addition, new indicators are proposed in the Treasury Strategy to report yield on financial
and non-financial investments and also borrowing in respect of non-financial investments.
The new indicator will monitor the extent to which the Council relies on income generating
activity to achieve a balanced budget (proportionality indicator). Proportionality in this
sense describes the size and risk of commercial activities with regards to the Council’s
operating and reserves activities.
The management and monitoring of the Treasury Management Policies and Prudential
indicators (for financial and non-financial investments) remains the responsibility of Full
Council (via the Governance and Audit Committee)
2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

That Governance and Audit Committee agree the mid-year report and information on
treasury activity.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To comply with the Local Government Act 2003 and to safeguard the Council’s financial
assets whilst maximising returns.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

To ensure Members are updated regularly on the Treasury Management service so that
they can adequately scrutinise treasury management activity.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the author has considered the likely implications of the decision
as follows:

5.1
5.1.1

Financial
The report is of a financial nature and financial details are included in the report
and appendices

5.2
5.2.1

Risk Management
I can confirm that risk has been given careful consideration and it is addressed in TMP1
within the Treasury Policy Statement 2018-19.

6.0
6.1

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED
N/A

7.0
7.1

ACRONYMS
Acronyms are dealt with within the report or appendices as they occur.

Background papers:-

None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Margaret Bailey Senior Accountant (Capital and Treasury)
01362 656218
Margaret.Bailey@breckland.gov.uk

27

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A – Economic Outlook from Link Asset Services
Appendix B – Treasury Management Strategy Statement

28

Appendix B
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
update
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2018/19 was approved by
this Council on 22nd February 2018, (Governance and Audit Committee 1st December
2017 recommendation to Full Council), with amendments approved at 16th February
Governance and Audit Committee with a recommendation to Full Council.
The details in this report update the position in light of the updated economic position and
budgetary changes already approved.
Prudential Indicator 2018/19

Original
£m

Authorised Limit
Operational Boundary
Capital Financing Requirement

£8.528m
£8.278m
-

Revised Prudential
Indicator
£m
£8.528m
£8.278m
-

The difference between the Authorised limit and the operational boundary is the overdraft
which is £0.250m
The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators)
This part of the report is structured to update:

The Council’s capital expenditure plans;

How these plans are being financed;

The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential
indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and

Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.
Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure
This table shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes since the
capital programme was agreed at the Budget.
Capital Expenditure by
Service
Commercialisation
Strategy and Governance
Place
Capital Loans
Total

2018/19
Original
Estimate
£m
4.462
0.272
3.734
0.483
8.951

2018/19
Revised
Estimate
£m
4.486
0.272
4.078
0.483
9.319

Current
Spend @
30.9.18
£m
0.036
0.011
0.747
0.000
0.794

2018/19
Forecast
Out-turn
£m
0.739
0.272
3.477
0.463
4.951

The revised estimate includes any approved changes since the 18-19 budget was set.
The forecast position and current year estimate reflect the latest figures which are being
put forward for approval as part of the budget setting process.
Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme
The table below draws together the main strategy elements of the capital expenditure
plans (above), highlighting the original supported and unsupported elements of the capital
programme, and the expected financing arrangements of this capital expenditure. The
borrowing element of the table increases the underlying indebtedness of the Council by
way of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), although this will be reduced in part by
revenue charges for the repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision). This direct
borrowing need may also be supplemented by maturing debt and other treasury
requirements.

29

Capital Expenditure

Supported
Unsupported
Total spend
Financed by:
Revenue
Capital grants
Capital reserves
Capital Loans repaid
Total financing
Borrowing need

2018/19
Original
Estimate
£m
8.951
8.951

Current
Spend @
30.09.18
£m
0.794
0.794

1.100
4.097
3.271
0.483
8.951
Nil

2018/19
Revised
Estimate
£m
4.951
4.951
0.122
2.274
2.092
0.463
4.951
Nil

Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement, External
Debt and the Operational Boundary
The table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur borrowing for a
capital purpose. It also shows the expected debt position over the period. This is termed
the Operational Boundary.
Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement
We are on target to achieve the original forecast Capital Financing Requirement.
Prudential Indicator – External Debt / the Operational Boundary
2018/19
Original
Estimate
£m
Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement
Total CFR
Net movement in CFR
-

Current
Position
£m

2017/18
Revised
Estimate
£m

-

-

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / the Operational Boundary
Borrowing
Other long term liabilities*
£8.278m
£8.278m
Total debt 31 March
£8.278m
£8.278m

£8.278m
£8.278m

* On balance sheet PFI scheme.
Limits to Borrowing Activity
The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that over
the medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a capital
purpose. Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total
of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2018/19 and
next two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future
years. The Council has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be
adhered to if this proves prudent.

30

2018/19
Original
Estimate
£m
£8.278m
-

Plus other long term liabilities*
Gross borrowing
CFR* (year end position)

Current
Position
£m
£8.278m
-

2018/19
Revised
Estimate
£m
£8.278m
-

* The leisure PFI scheme is on balance sheet and increases the CFR. This does not
affect the Council’s debt position (which remains nil) as the debt facility embedded in the
PFI will be repaid over the life of the scheme.
The Executive Director Commercialisation & S151 reports that no difficulties are
envisaged for the current year in complying with this prudential indicator and future years
pressures will be managed through the budget process.
A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing. This is the Authorised
Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set
and revised by Members. It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. It is the expected
maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the
statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.
Authorised limit for external debt

2018/19
Original
Indicator
£0.250m
£8.278m
£8.528m

Borrowing (Bank overdraft)
Other long term liabilities*
Total
* On balance sheet PFI scheme.

Current
Position
£8.278m
£8.278m

2018/19
Revised
Indicator
£0.250m
£8.278m
£8.528m

Investment Portfolio 2018/19
In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and
liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the Council’s
risk appetite. As set out in Appendix A, it is a very difficult investment market in terms of
earning interest. Rates remain low with the bank rate at 0.75% (as of 02/08/2018). Given
the risk environment, investment returns are likely to remain low.
The Council held £27.526m of investments as at 30 September 2018 (£23.973m at 31
March 2018) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is
0.727% (including capital loans) against a benchmark (3 month LIBID – London Interbank Bid rate) of 0.606 %.
The Executive Director Commercialisation & S151 confirms that the approved limits within
the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during the first six months of 2018/19.
The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2018/19 is forecast to be £164,780 which is
in line with the revised budget.
Investment Counterparty criteria
The Council continues to use Link Asset Services colour coding methodology to select
suitable counterparties.
Borrowing
The Council does not currently have any external borrowing, details on the PFI and the
CFR are detailed earlier in this appendix.

31

Appendix A
Update from Link Asset Services 30-10-2018
The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of their
service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The following table gives
our central view.

The flow of generally positive economic statistics after the quarter ended 30 June meant that
it came as no surprise that the MPC came to a decision on 2 August to make the first
increase in Bank Rate above 0.5% since the financial crash, from 0.5% to 0.75%. However,
the MPC emphasised again, that future Bank Rate increases would be gradual and would
rise to a much lower equilibrium rate, (where monetary policy is neither expansionary of
contractionary), than before the crash; indeed they gave a figure for this of around 2.5% in
ten years’ time but they declined to give a medium term forecast. It is unlikely that the MPC
will increase Bank Rate in February 2019, ahead of the deadline in March for Brexit.
Similarly, the MPC is more likely to wait until August 2019, than May 2019, before the next
increase, to be followed by further increases of 0.25% in May and November 2020 to reach
1.5%. However, the cautious pace of even these limited increases is dependent on a
reasonably orderly Brexit.
The overall longer run future trend is for gilt yields, and consequently PWLB rates, to rise,
albeit gently. However, over about the last 25 years, we have been through a period of
falling bond yields as inflation subsided to, and then stabilised at, much lower levels than
before, and supported by central banks implementing substantial quantitative easing
purchases of government and other debt after the financial crash of 2008. Quantitative
easing, conversely, also caused a rise in equity values as investors searched for higher
returns and purchased riskier assets. In 2016, we saw the start of a reversal of this trend
with a sharp rise in bond yields after the US Presidential election in November 2016, with
yields then rising further as a result of the big increase in the US government deficit aimed at
stimulating even stronger economic growth. That policy change also created concerns
around a significant rise in inflationary pressures in an economy which was already running
at remarkably low levels of unemployment. Unsurprisingly, the Fed has continued on its
series of robust responses to combat its perception of rising inflationary pressures by
repeatedly increasing the Fed rate to reach 2.00 – 2.25% in September 2018. It has also
continued its policy of not fully reinvesting proceeds from bonds that it holds as a result of
quantitative easing, when they mature. We have, therefore, seen US 10 year bond Treasury
yields rise above 3.2% during October 2018 and also seen investors causing a sharp fall in
equity prices as they sold out of holding riskier assets.
Rising bond yields in the US have also caused some upward pressure on bond yields in the
UK and other developed economies. However, the degree of that upward pressure has

32

been dampened by how strong or weak the prospects for economic growth and rising
inflation are in each country, and on the degree of progress towards the reversal of monetary
policy away from quantitative easing and other credit stimulus measures.
From time to time, gilt yields, and therefore PWLB rates, can be subject to exceptional levels
of volatility due to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis, emerging market developments and
sharp changes in investor sentiment. Such volatility could occur at any time during the
forecast period.
Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences
weighing on the UK. The above forecasts, (and MPC decisions), will be liable to further
amendment depending on how economic data and developments in financial markets
transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments, especially in the EU, could also
have a major impact. Forecasts for average investment earnings beyond the three-year time
horizon will be heavily dependent on economic and political developments.

33

Agenda Item 10

BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Head of Internal Audit

To:

Governance and Audit Committee 14 December 2018

Author:

Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager for Breckland DC

Subject:

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

Purpose:

This report provides members with the position on the progress made by
management in implementing agreed Internal Audit recommendations as at 30
November 2018.

Recommendation(s):
1)

That members agree the contents of the report.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on management’s implementation
of agreed audit recommendations. This report forms part of the overall reporting
requirements to assist the Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to its
Internal Audit Service.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to establish a
process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking
action. The frequency of reporting at Breckland District Council is twice yearly.

1.3

To comply with the above this report includes the status of agreed actions.

2.0

CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1

The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive and note the year end position
in relation to the completion of agreed internal audit recommendations.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Follow Up
Report on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations. In doing so, the
Committee is ensuring that it is kept up to date and informed as to the extent to which
management has progressed Internal Audit recommendations as at 30 November 2018.

4.0

IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Corporate Priorities

4.1.1

Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed are working towards the
efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

4.2

Risk Management

34

4.2.1

Failure to implement or improve internal controls may lead to the risks associated with
those controls materialising.

Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager
Telephone Number: 01508 533954
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No
Appendices attached to this report: Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

35

Eastern Internal Audit Services

BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations
Period Covered: 31 March 2018 to 30 November 2018
Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood – Internal Audit Manager for Breckland DC

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION

2

2. STATUS OF AGREED ACTIONS

2

APPENDIX 1 – STATUS OF AGREED INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

5

APPENDIX 2 and 3 – OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

6

Page 1 of 5

36

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

This report is being issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation
to the internal audit activity.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to
establish a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have
been effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not
taking action. The frequency of reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to
determine.

1.3

To comply with the above this report includes:


The status of agreed actions.

2.

STATUS OF AGREED ACTIONS

2.1

As a result of audit recommendations, management agree action to ensure implementation
within a specific timeframe and by a responsible officer.
The recommendations are subsequently uploaded on to the Council’s performance
management system Pentana, with this alerting management to update progress in advance
of the due date through email alerts. Management action to date is then input with internal
audit then either verifying the evidence provided and closing the recommendation or
agreeing to the extension date provided.
Escalation is also in place to deal with non-responses or recommendations which have been
overdue for a long time through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and through the
Finance Board as required due to the statutory requirements of the Section 151 Officer to
ensure that appropriate risk mitigation action is being taken. Ultimately further escalation is
through the Executive Management Team.

2.2

Appendix 1 to this report shows the details of the progress made to date in relation to the
implementation of the agreed recommendations and reflects the year in which the audit was
undertaken to enable the Committee to easily identify old outstanding recommendations.
The table also identifies between outstanding recommendations that have previously been
reported to this Committee and then those which have become outstanding this time round.

2.3

All of the 75 recommendations raised in 2015/16 are now closed, and evidence has been
provided to verify this.

2.4

In 2016/17 internal audit raised 56 recommendations. 53 of which have been implemented
by the agreed date, three of which are outstanding (two important and one needs attention).
The management responses in relation to these outstanding recommendations can be seen
at Appendix 2 of the report.
Number raised

56

Complete

53

95%

Outstanding

3

5%

Page 2 of 5

37

2.5

In 2017/18 Internal Audit raised 77 recommendations, 57 of which have been implemented
by the agreed date. 14 recommendations are now outstanding (two urgent, seven important
and five needs attention) and the remaining five are not yet due. One priority three
recommendation (as previously reported) has been rejected by management and will
therefore not be followed up.
The management responses in relation to the two urgent and seven important outstanding
recommendations can be seen at Appendix 3 of the report.

2.6

Number raised

77

Complete

57

74%

Outstanding

14

18%

Not yet due

5

7%

Disagreed

1

1%

In 2018/19 Internal Audit has raised 13 recommendations all of which are not yet due for
implementation.
Number raised to date

13

Complete

0

0%

Outstanding

0

0%

Not yet due

13

100%

2.7

Good progress continues to be made in addressing historic recommendations, however we
would urge management to focus on completion of the three recommendations that were
raised in 2016/17 and the urgent and important recommendations raised in 2017/18. In
particular, by using the Pentana system to keep recommendations up to date and reporting
progress to the Performance and Risk Board.

2.8

In relation to the internal audit recommendations that were raised across the board for all
members of the ARP in the areas of council tax, national non-domestic rates, benefits,
overpayments and enforcement these are currently being reviewed as part of the audits that
are underway at present. It is proposed that a report on these will be provided to the
Governance and Audit Committee in due course.

Page 3 of 5

38

APPENDIX 1 – STATUS OF AGREED INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS
Completed bt 31/03/2018 &
Previously reported to
(New) Outstanding
Total
Not Yet Due for
30/11/2018
Committee as outstanding
Outstanding
implementation
Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3
Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3

39

Audit Ref Audit Area
Assurance Level
2015/16 Internal Audit Reviews
BRK1619 Business Continuity Planning
Limited
and Disaster Recovery
2016/17 Internal Audit Reviews
BRK1704 Environmental Services Reasonable
Contaminated Waste
BRK1708 LABV
Substantial
BRK1709 Licensing and Business Support
Reasonable
(J)
2017/18 Internal Audit Reviews
BRK1802 Private Sector Housing
Limited
BRK1806 Environmental Protection (J)
Limited
BRK1808 Environmental Services
Reasonable
BRK1810 Accounts Receivable
Substantial
BRK1811 Income
Reasonable
BRK1814 Planning
Reasonable
BRK1815 Corporate Governance (J)
Reasonable
BRK1816 Risk Management (J)
Substantial
BRK1821 Cybersecurity
Limited
2018/19 Internal Audit Reviews
BRK1903 ARP Governance
Reasonable
BRK1904 Food, Health and Safety
Reasonable
BRK1905 Democratic Services
Reasonable
TOTALS

5

0

1

1
1

1
1

1

1

5
3
1
1
1
2

1
6

2

20

2
1

6

0
0
0
17

2
1
3
7

1
1
1

2

3
1

2

1

1

5

4
2
0
0
0
3
0
0
5

1

13

0

3

Page 4 of 5

1

2

5

4

0

3
1
3
11

APPENDIX 2 and 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

40
Page 5 of 5

Audit Reference

Responsible Officer

Recommendations

Priority

Status Description

Original Date Due for
Completion

Revised Date Due for
Completion

Latest Notes

A Waste Collection Policy be developed and be
Medium
approved by Cabinet that clearly sets out the
Council's approach to managing resident's
household waste in a safe and cost effective way,
that encourages waste minimisation and recycling
and requirements for minimising contaminated
waste.
The policy to include the responsibilities of the
Council, its waste collection contractor (Serco),
and residents, with regard to recycling and
enforcement actions that may be taken in the
event of repeated contamination by householders.

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

01-Jun-17

14-Dec-18 The policy development has been put on
hold awaiting the publication of DEFRA's
resources and waste strategy which is
due later in the year. We would therefore
like an extension to allow us to take
account of this document within the
policy.

BRK1708 - Breckland Bridge

Strategic Property Manager

Low
Recommendation 2: To undertake the due
diligence to prepare for the decision to extend the
partnership including the extension criteria,
business planning and partner covenant.

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

30-Sep-17

31-Mar-19 Officers are currently working through a
project plan to extend the partnership.
This is approximately one quarter behind
the project plan.
The outcome will enable a decision about
whether to extend the partnership into a
further phase of activity or not. The
project plan requires an internal decision
by Autumn 2018 to be implemented by
01 April 2019 - which would be 1 year in
advance of the actual currently business
plan period - thus avoiding the corporate
costs for the last year in the current
business plan.
Therefore requested an extension to this
audit recommendation to 31 March 2019.

BRK1709 - Licensing &
Business Support

Licensing & Business Support
Manager

Taxi licence fees for both Councils to be reviewed. Medium

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

30-Sep-17

30-Apr-19 As agreed with the service manager and
portfolio holder, the taxi policy and
associated fees review will take place in
2019. This is due to the significant impact
on the team from new animal welfare
licensing scheme which is now being
implemented and new fees revised and
in place.

41

BRK1704 Environmental
Communities and
Services - Contaminated Waste Environmental Services
Manager

Original Date Due for
Completion

Revised Date Due for
Completion

42

Audit Reference

Responsible Officer

Recommendations

Priority

Status Description

Latest Notes

BRK1802 - Private Sector
Housing

Housing Manager

Documented licence conditions be enforced and
the relevant evidence be retained and where a
landlord has not provided evidence requested or
failed to meet licence conditions, then formal
enforcement actions be taken as necessary.

High

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

01-Jul-18

01-Dec-18 Private Sector Officers are ensuring that
all evidence of enforcement cases are
being recorded on Flare and will be
transferred across to the new software
system in the new year. Amendment to
original date requested as this action
requires changes to policy and
procedure. Both of these documents are
in the process of being amended and will
be required to follow the committee
process reflected within the proposed
completion date.

BRK1802 - Private Sector
Housing

Housing Manager

All inspections, including assessment of fire risks, High
to be promptly completed and licences processed
and issued in a timely manner, within an agreed
timeframe, which should be clearly communicated
to the Housing team.

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

01-Jul-18

01-Dec-18 The team are focussing on high risk
assessments and ensuring that all
administrative tasks are completed in a
timely manner. The team are currently
recruiting an additional resource who will
focus on this area. Amendment to
original date requested as this action
requires changes to policy and
procedure. Both of these documents are
in the process of being amended and will
be required to follow the committee
process reflected within the proposed
completion date.

BRK1806 - Environmental
Protection

Business Development Officer

The Council to implement and maintain a risk
assessment programme for private water
supplies.

Medium

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

31-May-18

BRK1814 - Planning

Planning Enforcement Manager An enforcement register is created and
maintained in line with legislative requirements.

Medium

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

31-Jan-18

30-Jun-19 Extension has been requested and
agreed to put this action in line with
others, to enable the implementation of
replacement Public Protection software
which will better support the delivery of
this function.
03-Dec-18 The officer involved has been signed off
for a prolonged period. We have not
reassigned the work because the
information remains accessible to the
public and therefore it is not considered a
delay would have negative impacts. This
de-prioritisation of the action was raised
at the Capita Operational Board in
August 2018 and the Council did not
contest the delay or offer a different view
on the priority of the action.

BRK1821 - Cybersecurity

IT Manager

Recommendation 2. The Council to conduct a
review of the ICT Security policy, including
suggested policy adjustments related to Cyber
threats and as laid out in subsequent actions in
this report, and communicate it to all relevant
officers and members.

Medium

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

31-Jul-18

28-Feb-19 ICT Security policy now complete this
needs to be passed through the Council
approval process.

IT Manager

Medium
Recommendation 4. The Council to ensure that
the available Cyber Security e-learning package is
made available to all officers and members and
that completion of the training is logged and
monitored.

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

31-Oct-18

31-Mar-19 A bid is being put forward across the
Norfolk Councils to seek funding to
acquire specialist Cyber security training
material to address this topic. Training on
Cyber Security was highlighted as a area
to improve on in general across all the
Norfolk Councils and as such this has
resulted in a joint bid to seek the funding
to deliver this. The original plan to utilise
the existing computer based training
system cannot currently progress as the
budget funding is no longer available for
Breckland users. I will find out when the
funding request will be decided and
advise timeline for solution.

BRK1821 - Cybersecurity

IT Manager

Recommendation 5. The Council to implement
appropriate change control processes that are
proportional to the needs of the Council.

Medium

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

31-Jul-18

31-Dec-18 Work has been undertaken to implement
a change control process for the IT
service at Breckland Council. There is a
change control module within the
Manage Engine service desk software
which we have invested in. Currently we
have put together a work flow process
that we think is proportionate to the
service needs and are currently in the
process of evaluating this.

BRK1821 - Cybersecurity

IT Manager

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

31-Aug-18

BRK1821 - Cybersecurity

IT Manager

Recommendation 7. The Council to conduct a risk Medium
assessment of the lack of firewall resilience and to
deploy additional resilience in this area as
appropriate.
Recommendation 8. The Council to ensure that, Medium
once connectivity to provide seamless service
during a disruption at either site is in place, the
functionality is tested on a periodic basis.

Outstanding (With Agreed
Extension)

31-Aug-18

31-Dec-18 Firewall procured and on site. Need to
create time to implement as a active
active pair of firewalls. Looking to deploy
by end of December 2018
30-Apr-19 Working is progressing between
Breckland ICT and CPBS to put in place
a DR / BC solution. Currently the
expected delivery time would be
estimated around April 2019.

43

BRK1821 - Cybersecurity

Agenda Item 11

BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Head of Internal Audit

To:

Governance and Audit Committee, 14 December 2018

Author:

Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager for Breckland DC

Subject:

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity from 1 April 2018 to 5 December
2018 in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for
2018/19, and includes abbreviated executive summaries in respect of the audit
reviews which have been finalised in the course of this period

Recommendation(s):
1)
That members review the outcomes of the four audits completed by TIAA , in the
period covered by this report, and the amendments to the 2018/19 internal audit plan.
1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the
annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the
Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed plan, including any
significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting at Breckland is
twice yearly. To comply with the above the report identifies:
o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
o Performance Measure outcomes to date.

2.0

CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1

The current position and issues in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit
Plan 2018/19 are shown within the report.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress
Report on Internal Audit Activity. In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards and are fulfilling their
terms of reference.

4.0

IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Corporate Priorities

4.1.1

Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are
working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

44

4.2

Financial

4.2.1

The Internal Audit Plan has been delivered within the approved budget for 2018/19.

4.3

Risk Management

44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan
for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes.
Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager for Breckland DC
Telephone Number: 01508 533954
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager for
Breckland DC
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No
Appendices attached to this report: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

45

Eastern Internal Audit Services

Breckland District Council
Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
Period Covered: 2 May 2018 to 4 December 2018
Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood – Internal Audit Manager Breckland District Council

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION ..............................................................................................................2
2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ....................2
3. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK ..............................2
4. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK ............................................................3
5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES.........................................................................................4
APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK...................5
APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES ..............................................7

Page 1 of 20

46

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the
internal audit activity.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to report to
the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, including any
significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting and the specific
content are for the Authority to determine.

1.3

To comply with the above this report includes:





Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
Performance Indicator outcomes to date.

2.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

2.1

At the meeting on 16 February 2018 the Annual Internal Audit Plan for the year was
approved, identifying the specific audits to be delivered. Since then, the following changes
have been made to the plan;
Audit description

Nature of the change

Transformation Programme

The programme has come to natural end of the
four-year life span, the remaining efficiencies are
part of the ongoing programme of work,
therefore the internal audit is no longer required.

Environmental Protection

This audit has been deferred to 2019/20 to allow
the team to work on the implementation of new
software.

Housing Needs, Allocations,
Homelessness and Housing

An additional two days has been allocated from
the transformation programme review to
accommodate additional testing over funding
arrangements, system access rights and
following
up
on
previously
raised
recommendations.

Office 365 changed to Project
Programme Audit

This review was scheduled in for quarter four of
2018/19, however the Office 365 project has not
yet been completed. We will therefore provide
assurance on the governance and management
arrangements of IT projects.

3.

PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK

3.1

The current position in completing audits to date within the financial year is shown in
Appendix 1 and progress to date is in line with expectations.

3.2

In summary 84 days of programmed work has been completed, equating to 46% of the
revised Audit Plan for 2018/19.

Page 2 of 20

47

4.

THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK

4.1

On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the following
definitions:
Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably
designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the
time of our review were being consistently applied.
Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal
controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation’s
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the
process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks.
Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to
ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and
effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are
required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks.
No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or
absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to
manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process.
Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks.

4.2

Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the following
definitions:
Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be
taken within 1 month.
Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within
3 months.
Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should be
taken within 6 months.

4.3

In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are proposed,
these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance
the delivery of value for money services. These are for management to consider and are not
part of the follow up process.

4.4

During the period covered by the report Internal Audit Services have issued four final
reports:
Audit

Assurance

P1

P2

P3

Food Health and Safety

Reasonable

0

1

1

ARP Governance

Reasonable

0

2

3

Democratic Services

Reasonable

0

3

3

Accounts Payable

Substantial

0

0

0

Page 3 of 20

48

The Executive Summary of these reports are attached at Appendix 2, full copies of these
reports can be requested by Members.
4.5

As can be seen in the table above as a result of these audits 13 recommendations have
been raised.
All 13 recommendations have been agreed by management. In addition, two Operational
Effectiveness Matters have been proposed to management for consideration.

4.6

It is also pleasing to note that all audits concluded in a positive opinion being awarded,
indicating a strong and stable control environment to date, with no issues that would need to
be considered at year end and included in the Annual Governance Statement.

5.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

5.1

The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures against
which the contractor will be reviewed on a quarterly basis. There is a total of 11 indicators,
over 4 areas.

5.2

There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; however,
performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows:




9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status.
5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status.
4 or below have met target = Red Status.

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed by
the contractor and agreed with the Internal Audit Consortium Manager to ensure that
appropriate action is taken.
5.3

The second quarters work has now been concluded, with draft reports having been issued in
all apart from one case. This audit relates to Economic Development and all information has
now been collated to complete the draft report and issue this to the client. Quarterly reports
on the performance measures continue to be provided to the Internal Audit Manager.

5.4

In addition to these quarterly reports from the Contractors Audit Director, ongoing weekly
updates are provided to ensure that delivery of the audit plan for the current financial year is
on track, and where there are issues an action plan is agreed.

Page 4 of 20

49

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK
Audit Area

Audit Ref No. of days Revised
Days
Status
Days
Delivered

Assurance
Level

Recommendations
P1 Urgent

Quarter 1
TOTAL
Quarter 2
Procurement and Contract Management

0

0

0

BRK1901

8

8

7

Economic Development - Snetterton project BRK1902
ARP Governance
BRK1903

10
8

10
8

8
8

Food, Health and Safety

BRK1904

8

8

8

Democratic Services

BRK1905

8

8

8

42

42

39

Draft Report issued - awaiting
management response
Draft Report imminent
Final report issued 02
Reasonable
November 2018
Final report issued 04 October Reasonable
2018
Final report issued 21
Reasonable
November 2018

P2
P3 Needs
Important Attention

Date to
Comments
Committee
Op

Joint

0

2

3

2

0

1

1

0

0

3

3

0

December
2018
December
2018
December
2018

Joint
Joint

50

TOTAL
Quarter 3
Corporate Governance

BRK1907

4

4

2

Accounts Payable

BRK1908

12

12

12

Housing Needs, Allocations, Homelessness
& Housing Register

BRK1906

10

12

3

Payroll and Human Resources

BRK1909

15

15

5

Delivery Unit Team

BRK1910

6

6

2

47

49

24

BRK1911

10

10

1

Start date 14 Feb 2019
Draft report expexted 8
February 2019

BRK1912

6

0

0

Audit cancelled.

Joint

BRK1913
BRK1914

10
8
34

10
0
20

0
0
1

Audit deferred to 2019/20.

Audit deferred to 2019/20

TOTAL
Quarter 4
Key Controls and Assurance

Transformation Programme - benefits
realisation
Breckland Bridge
Environmental Protection
TOTAL

Audit underway
Draft report expected January
2019
Final report issued 26
Substantial
November 2018
Audit underway
Draft report expected by 14
January 2019
Audit underway
Draft report expected January
2019
Audit underway
Draft report expected January
2019

Page 5 of 20

Joint

0

0

0

0

December
2018
2 days used from
Transformation Programme
Joint

Joint

Audit Area

Audit Ref No. of days Revised
Days
Status
Days
Delivered

Assurance
Level

Recommendations
P1 Urgent

IT Audits
Office 365
IT Programme and Project Management
Cyber Security
Network Management
Software Licensing

TOTAL
Follow Up
Follow Up
TOTAL

BRK1915

25

5

0

10
5
5

0
0
2

25

25

2

12
12

12
12

8
6

160

148

72

BRK1916
BRK1917
BRK1918

NA

TOTAL
Percentage of plan completed

51

Audit delivered by West Suffolk Internal Audit Services
ARP Audits
Council Tax & Overpayments

35

0

Audit Start 16/07/2018
Audit start Sept 2018
Audit start 16/07/2018
Audit start 01/09/2018
35

35

12
34%

OVERALL TOTAL

195

183

Joint
Joint

Audit underway
Draft report expected by 17
December 2018

12

National Non-Domestic Rates
Benefits
ARP Enforcement

Op

Joint

49%

35

P2
P3 Needs
Important Attention

Date to
Comments
Committee

84
46%

Page 6 of 20

6

7

2

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES

Assurance Review of Food, Health and Safety
Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT

ACTION POINTS

52

Control Area

Urgent

Important

Needs Attention

Operational

Policies and procedures

0

0

1

0

Food safety – registration

0

1

0

0

Food safety – hygiene
inspections

0

1

0

0

Food safety – complaints

0

0

1

0

Total

0

2

2

0

No recommendations have been raised in respect of infectious diseases or
health and safety.
SCOPE
The objective of the audit was to review the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of the systems and controls in place over Food, Health and Safety.

Page 7 of 20

RATIONALE



The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance opinion has
been derived as a result of two 'important' and two 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.



The areas under scope have not been subject to previous audit scrutiny by TIAA at either authority, hence no direction of travel is provided with the overall
assurance opinion.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

53

We found that the Council has demonstrated the following points of good practice as identified in this review and we will be sharing details of these operational
provisions with other member authorities in the Consortium:


South Holland District Council has taken over the lead from Boston Borough Council in developing the local Safety Advisory Group, which is a network of
various organisations including Lincolnshire County Council, police, fire and ambulance services, with the purpose being to consult and advise on safety
issues relating to major events taking place in the district. As a result of the changes made, the number of meetings has been significantly reduced to ensure
that the group is organised efficiently and to reduce time commitments for all parties involved.

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:


The Councils use alternative inspection questionnaires for low risk premises to reduce the number of inspections required, thereby maximising officer time on
higher risk cases.



South Holland District Council works closely with the Fresh Produce Consortium (FPC), which represents businesses, in developing a process for responding
to incidents of clandestine travellers in shipments of food. This allows for a consistent response which is acceptable to all parties and provides the Council with
greater confidence in the controls in place and in the businesses dealing with these incidents.



Proactive health and safety work is conducted via projects looking at identified high risk areas, to ensure that the greatest risks are still addressed.

Page 8 of 20

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED
The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'important' recommendations have been made.
Food hygiene – registration


Checks are made for all new food business registrations to ensure that the business owner has not been prohibited from operating a food business. This will
reduce the risk of such persons operating a food business in the district, thereby posing a health risk to the public. (South Holland)

Food hygiene – inspections


All food hygiene inspections, including initial inspections of new businesses and routine inspections, and responses to complaints are conducted in
accordance with target timescales, to reduce the risk of poor food hygiene practices being followed and consequent reputational damage to the Councils.
(Both Councils)

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.
Policies and procedures

54



Procedures and work instructions are reviewed and updated as required, to reduce the risk of outdated working practices being followed. (Both Councils)

Food hygiene – complaints


All evidence relating to food complaint cases and publicly funded funerals to be retained electronically and linked to a central database, to reduce the risk of it
being unavailable when required. (South Holland)

Operational Effectiveness Matters
There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.
Previous audit recommendations
The areas under scope have not been subject to previous audit scrutiny by TIAA at either authority.
Other issues noted
During the audit it was noted that the approved version of the Councils’ joint Corporate Enforcement Policy was not available on the South Holland District Council
website. This issue was addressed during the audit and therefore a recommendation has not been raised.

Page 9 of 20

Assurance Review of the ARP Governance Arrangements
Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT

ACTION POINTS

55

Control Area

Urgent

Important

Needs Attention

Operational

Strategic Governance

0

0

2

0

Internal Governance
Arrangements and
Operational delivery

0

2

1

2

Total

0

2

3

2

SCOPE
The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within ARP Governance, to help confirm that these are operating adequately,
effectively and efficiently.

Page 10 of 20

RATIONALE



The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance
opinion has been derived as a result of two ‘important’ and three 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.



The audit has also raised two 'operational effectiveness matters', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:
Controls are in place which contribute to consistent processes being applied to all seven authorities. These include procedures and process maps for
revenues and benefits processes; one uniform central document management system; quality control system; and operational performance measures. This
therefore assists in mitigating the risk that inconsistent practices are applied to the different authorities which can result in partnership inefficiencies.



Performance indicators for key areas, e.g. council tax and NNDR collection rates, are produced from data derived from one uniform computer system thereby
ensuring a like for like comparison between all authorities.

56



ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'important' recommendations have been made.
Internal Governance Arrangements and Operational delivery


The Council ARP Finance team to agree a standard set of reporting, including frequency, which assists in mitigating the risk that inconsistent practices are
adopted, resulting in inefficiencies within the ARP.



The JC and OIB report template is updated to instruct authors to include details on officers consulted with, in relation to the financial, legal and HR implications
section of the report. This will ensure that key decisions are made by the correct officers.
Page 11 of 20

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where three 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.
Strategic Governance


The review of the risk management approach at the ARP is concluded and processes and documentation are updated accordingly. This helps to reduce the
risk that risks are not reviewed and reported on in a timely manner and therefore not sufficiently mitigated.



Balance scorecard performance indicators, in respect of Customer Satisfaction and Performance Management, are provided with supporting data. This helps
in mitigating the risk that performance is un-evidenced and incorrectly stated.

Internal Governance Arrangements and Operational delivery


The OIB to stipulate items which they require feeding back to the relevant groups and these items to be recorded formally within the minutes. This helps
mitigate the risk that key issues/items raised by the OIB are not communicated with the Finance Group leading to inadequate financial management and
decisions.

Operational Effectiveness Matters

57

The operational effectiveness matters, for management to consider relate to the following:
Internal Governance Arrangements and Operational delivery


Consideration is given to the ARP using a document management and collaboration tool, such as Microsoft SharePoint, as a way to manage and share
information such as minutes and discussions within the ARP.



Consideration is given to including '% of audit recommendations completed' as an indicator in the ARP balance scorecard.

Previous audit recommendations
The audit reviewed the previous internal audit recommendations, of which none remain outstanding.

Other points noted


The Service Level Agreement (SLA) for the Provision of Internal Audit Services of the revenue and benefit services delivered by the ARP states that ‘Follow
Up progress to be provided on agreed recommendations on a quarterly basis to all Parties’ Audit Managers’ which is the responsibility of the Internal Audit
Team. Progress on agreed recommendations is being followed up by the Breckland Head of Internal Audit albeit some information is not received in a timely
manner.
It was also agreed, at the OIB, that recommendations will be reported every quarter to the individual partners audit teams and a completion timeframe
agreed, which the internal Audit Team has confirmed is the same action as that included in the SLA.
Page 12 of 20

The SLA for the Provision of Internal Audit Services is due to be reviewed in November 2018 for the 2019/20 financial year and therefore at this point, a
review of the recommendations progress and subsequent reporting process, and what the Internal Audit Team provide, will be undertaken.

58
Page 13 of 20

Assurance Review of Democratic Services Arrangements
Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT

ACTION POINTS

59

Control Area

Urgent

Important

Needs Attention

Operational

Training

0

3

1

1

Members’ Allowances

0

0

1

1

Members’ Expenses

0

3

3

0

Total

0

6

5

2

SCOPE
The objective of the audit was to review the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of the systems and controls in place over Democratic Services.

Page 14 of 20

RATIONALE



The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed ''Reasonable” in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance opinion has
been derived as a result of six 'important' and five 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.



The audit has also raised two 'operational effectiveness matters', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services.



A review of Democratic Services (BRK/16/06) was completed as part of the 2015/16 audit plan for Breckland DC, with the final report being issued in October
2015. The audit concluded in a ‘Substantial’ assurance opinion, with no recommendations being raised. Hence there has been a deterioration since the
previous review.



This area has not been subject to previous audit scrutiny at South Holland by TIAA. As such, no direction of travel is applicable.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

60
We found that the Council has demonstrated the following points of good practice as identified in this review and we will be sharing details of these operational
provisions with other member authorities in the Consortium:


Breckland is introducing payment for Members' expenses via iTrent, which is currently at trial and modification stage, with training to be set up for users of the
system. This will reduce the need to submit manual claim forms and is accessible out of business hours.

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:


Current Members’ allowances have been approved and published by both Councils, having considered outcomes of reviews by Independent Remuneration
Panels. This is in accordance with the requirements of Statute, in particular, Local Government, England - The Local Authorities (Members' Allowances)
(England) Regulations 2003.



Checks are applied to confirm that members have attended the required number of Committee meetings to receive the basic rate allowance and special
responsibility allowances. This demonstrates that only valid allowances are paid.

Page 15 of 20

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has highlighted the following areas where six 'important' recommendations have been made.
Training


Members to attend relevant training included in the Councillor Training Programme, thereby reducing the risk of not discharging their duties in a manner
expected of them and not delivering on their personal development plans.(Breckland)



There is a need to produce an annual Member training programme that allows Members to know and plan for training opportunities which could otherwise be
missed, thereby adversely impacting on the ability to discharge their duties more effectively. (South Holland)



Members from both Councils to complete the GDPR training via e-learning and for GDPR training to be included in Members' induction training as standard.
This is to reduce the risk that key principles will be overlooked, leading to reputational damage to the Members and the Council. (Both Councils)

61

Members’ Expenses


For Members to submit VAT receipts with their claims for reimbursement of fuel costs, thereby allowing the Council to claim VAT from the Inland Revenue.
This is to reduce the risk of financial losses through not claiming or being able to justify claiming the VAT element. (Breckland)



There is a need to document checks applied to Members' expense claim forms, so as to reduce the risk of inaccurate or unjustified expenses being paid,
ultimately resulting in financial loss to the Council. (South Holland)



There is a need for an improved audit trail in the submission and processing of Members expenses, to avoid the risk on non-compliance with the requirements
of the Constitution and concerns with late payment of expenses, possibly resulting in late or incorrect and or fraudulent claims being paid. (South Holland)

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where five 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.
Training


For training on Governance and Standards and Code of Conduct to be included in annual Member Training Programmes and for such training to be
mandatory, in order to reduce the risk of criticism for not acknowledging / complying with such requirements. (Both Councils).

Members’ Expenses
Page 16 of 20



To publish details of travel and subsistence allowable to Members on the Council's website, to reduce the risk of incorrect claims being submitted and
reputational risk over the lack of transparency. (Breckland)

Members’ Allowances


There is a need for the Council to publish allowances paid to its Members for 2017/18, in order to reduce the risk of non- compliance with the Local Authorities
(Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 and the risk of reputational damage for the lack of transparency. (South Holland)

Members’ Expenses (and Training)


The Council to use one style of claim form for claiming Member expenses and that all forms show details of the authorising officer, thereby reducing the risk of
claims not being authorised potentially resulting in claims being processed that do not meet the correct criteria. (South Holland)



There is a need to schedule in formal training for Members on using iTrent for claiming expenses, so as to reduce the risk of delays or errors with Members'
expenses. (Breckland)

Operational Effectiveness Matters
The operational effectiveness matters, for management to consider relate to the following:

62



To consider updating the published scheme of Members' Allowances to provide more detail over allowances applicable for each category of Member
responsibility, in particular, those receiving Special Responsibility Allowance. (South Holland)



To consider the use of iTrent for claiming Members' expenses, to reduce manual processes and align with the Council’s digital agenda. (South Holland)

Previous audit recommendations
This area has not been subject to previous audit scrutiny at South Holland by TIAA. A review of Democratic Services (BRK/16/06) was completed as part of the
2015/16 audit plan for Breckland DC, with the final report being issued in October 2015. The audit concluded in a ‘Substantial’ assurance opinion, with no
recommendations being raised.

Page 17 of 20

Assurance Review of the Accounts Payable Arrangements
Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT

ACTION POINTS
Control Area

Urgent

Important

Needs Attention

Operational

No recommendations have been raised.

63
SCOPE
The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within accounts payable, to help confirm that these are operating adequately,
effectively and efficiently. The audit covered: policy, procedure and systems; ordering; and creditors.

Page 18 of 20

RATIONALE


The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed ‘Substantial’ in managing the risks associated with the audit.



Whilst no formal recommendations have been raised, a weakness around confirming the authenticity of requests for changes to existing suppliers was
evident during quarter one. This was recognised and rectified by management during quarter two with the outcomes of audit testing confirming this. A
‘needs attention’ recommendations was also made in the previous service audit (BRK/17/13 issued in April 2017) to address this issue, which is
essentially to reduce the potential risk of fraud. This had been confirmed as implemented with no further issues found as part of the previous review of
Key Controls (BRK/1817), completed as part of the 2017/18 audit plan. Further testing of this area will be undertaken during the Key Controls and
Assurance (BRK/19/11) review scheduled in quarter four.



The conclusions of this audit indicate that the substantial assurance for accounts payable remains, however it is recognised that the controls in relation
to changes to existing suppliers must be maintained and application of this should be consistent.

POSITIVE FINDINGS
It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

64

Policy, Procedure and Systems


Policies and procedures are in place and reflective of current arrangements.
Ordering



Segregation of duties exist between the raising of purchase orders and approval of invoices for payment, with access levels aligned to officer’s
delegated levels of responsibility.



Supplier Set Up forms are completed and authorised before new suppliers are set up on the system.



Confirmation is obtained of goods/services received and purchase orders are independently authorised.



The council has a policy of no ‘Purchase Order No PAY’. Controls to prevent any invalid exceptions are operated within the Finance department.
Creditors



A performance measure to monitor the payment of invoices within 30 days is in place and regularly reported on. Currently the council is meeting its
target.



Access to create and amend new suppliers within the system is restricted to staff within Finance.
Page 19 of 20



Invoices are registered, independently authorised, processed and confirmed for payment within Integra with all system records updated to indicate
payment.



System controls are in place to prevent duplicate invoices being registered and paid.

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED
The audit has not highlighted any areas requiring formal recommendations.
Operational Effectiveness Matters
There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.
Other Points to Note

65

It was noted within the sample of invoices tested that the Shared Executive Director – Strategy and Governance, had not been included in the Authorised
Signatory List. This was rectified during the course of the audit and therefore no recommendation has been made.
Previous audit recommendations
The audit reviewed the previous internal audit recommendations which included two ‘needs attention’ recommendations. We obtained evidence of completion
through our follow up process, however as a result of this review it has become apparent that one of the control weaknesses has reoccurred, as reported
above in the rationale.

Page 20 of 20

Agenda Item 12
BRECKLAND COUNCIL GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME
Meeting Date
14 December 2018

Agenda Item

Officer Responsible

Treasury Management Mid Year Report 2018-19
Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 Officer)
Quarter 2 2018-19 Risk Report
Executive Director Strategy & Governance
Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations
Head of Internal Audit
Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
Head of Internal Audit
The Norfolk Pension Fund Representative will be in attendance after the meeting. Members are asked to send any questions they may
have to Alison Chubbock who will then pass them onto the representative.
15 February 2019
Treasury Management Policy & Strategy 2019-20
Quarter 3 2018-19 Risk Report
Audit Committee Sel-Assessment Exercise & Action Plan
Annual Audit Plan 2019/20
Annual Grant Certification Report 2017/18

66

Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 Officer)
Executive Director of Strategy & Governance
Head of Internal Audit
Head of Internal Audit
External Audit

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

67

Agenda Item 15

